ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
JO NT MEETI NG
SENATE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
January 24, 2013
9:00 a.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

SENATE STATE AFFAI RS

Senator Fred Dyson, Chair

Senator Cathy G essel, Vice Chair

Senat or John Coghi | |

Senator Bill W el echowski

HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS

Representative Bob Lynn, Chair

Representative Wes Keller, Vice Chair

Representative Lynn Gattis

Represent ati ve Shel |l ey Hughes

Represent ati ve Doug | saacson

Representative Charisse Ml lett

Represent ati ve Jonat han Krei ss- Tonki ns

VEMBERS ABSENT

SENATE STATE AFFAI RS

Senator Bert Stednan

HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS

Al'l nmenbers present

COW TTEE CALENDAR

OVERVI EW FEDERAL OVERREACH - PRESENTATION ON STATE ACTIVITIES

RELATED TO RS 2477 EASEMENTS OVER FEDERAL LANDS AND DI SPUTES

OVER SUBMERGED LANDS AND NAVI GABLE WATERS
- HEARD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

JT. S/IH STA COW TTEES -1- January 24, 2013



No previous action to record.
W TNESS REG STER

ED FOGELS, Deputy Conmi ssioner

Departnent of Natural Resources

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented information on federal overreach
into resource devel opnent in Al aska.

KENT SULLI VAN, Assistant Attorney Ceneral

Nat ural Resources Section

Depart nent of Law

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented information on R S. 2477.

SCOTIT OGAN, Manager

Public Access Assertion and Defense Unit

Division of Mning, Land & Water

Departnent of Natural Resources

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented information on navigability
i ssues.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

9:00: 40 AM

CHAIR BOB LYNN called the joint neeting of the Senate and House
State Affairs Standing Conmittees to order at 9:00 a.m Present
at the call to order were Senators Coghill, Gessel, and Chair
Dyson, and Representatives G@Gttis, Hughes, |saacson, Keller,
MIllet, and Chair Lynn. Senator Wel echowski and Representative
Krei ss-Tonkins arrived shortly thereafter.

OVERVI EW FEDERAL OVERREACH - PRESENTATI ON ON STATE ACTI VI Tl ES
RELATED TO RS 2477 EASEMENTS OVER FEDERAL LANDS AND DI SPUTES
OVER SUBMERGED LANDS AND NAVI GABLE WATER

9:02: 58 AM

CHAI R DYSON introduced the topic of the nmeeting, as well as the
testifiers. He said that Ed Fogels is a Deputy Conm ssioner at
the Departnent of Natural Resources and is responsible for
overseeing five divisions - Agriculture, Forestry, Mning, Land
and Water, Parks and Recreation and Support Services. He said
that Scott Ogan, a long-tine friend, |eads the Departnent of
Nat ural Resources' Land's Navigability Project with a mssion to
protect the public rights associated with navigable and public

JT. S/IH STA COW TTEES - 2- January 24, 2013



waters, and to ensure that the state's title to |lands beneath
navigable waters is protected. He noted the inportance of
today's topic. He quoted forner-president Dwi ght D. Ei senhower
who said, "Don't let the pressing keep you from doing what is
i nportant.”

9:05: 06 AM
ED FOGELS, Deputy Comm ssioner, Departnent of Natural Resources,
introduced the topic of "Federal Overreach into Resource

Devel opnent in Alaska.” He said he would review the history of
the Statehood Act in order to explain how the state determ ned
its land position.

MR. FOGELS related that Al aska was purchased in 1867. In 1884
Congress extended the Federal Mning Law to Alaska, which

allowed mning claine to be staked. In 1903 the federal
gover nnment all owed honesteading in Al aska. Many federal
conservation units and national parks and refuges were

est abl i shed before statehood, such as Munt MKinley and d acier
Bay National Parks, National Petroleum Reserve-Al aska (NPRA)
Kat mai Nat i onal Park, Kenai and Kodiak National Wldlife
Ref uges, and the Tongass and Chugach National Forests.

CHAIR DYSON recalled that NPRA was set aside as a Naval
petrol eum reserve

MR. FOGELS related that on July 7, 1958, President Ei senhower
signed the Al aska Statehood Act. The Act originally gave Al aska
103 mllion acres of a land entitlement. Wth subsequent
| egislation, that was expanded to the 105.8 mllion acres of
land that is the current entitlenment. Al aska was given 25 years
to nmake land selections. Subsequent |egislation extended that
wi ndow to 1994 to finalize selections. As of today, Al aska has
received all but about 5.5 mllion acres of its entitlenent.

9:09: 06 AM

REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON inquired if those lands are in the
state's possession with clear title or if they are awaiting
transfer.

MR. FOGELS explained that the 100 mlIlion acres the state owns
has been transferred to the state. Wwen a state first receives
land from the federal government it is referred to as "interim
conveyed," or tentatively approved. It has not been surveyed or
patented. The vast mgjority of those |ands today are considered
tentatively approved, which gives the state full rmanagenent
rights.

JT. S/H STA COW TTEES - 3- January 24, 2013



REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON asked for clarification of tentatively
approved land. He asked if it could be sold without restriction
even though the state does not have clear title.

MR. FOGELS replied that the state does not have patents to the
| ands, but it does have full nanagenent authority and the
ability to sell the I and.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if there was a plan for the 5.5
mllion acres that remains.

MR. FOCELS explained that half of the 5.5 mllion acres is in
f eder al wi t hdr awal s, mlitary reservations, and the TAPS
pi peline corridor. He noted that those are very val uable | ands

that the state would like to have sone day. The state will Kkeep
those acres in mnd for the purpose of selection at a later date
if they beconme available. The remamining half of the 5.5 mllion

acres is available to the state now.

He said as the state decides how to use the renaining acreage
the process becones nore conplicated. Under the Statehood Act,
the state was allowed to over select lands - up to 125 percent
of the actual nunber of acres. Native Corporations were also
allowed to over select by the sanme percentage. He said that
Native clains nmust be decided ahead of state clains. The Bureau
of Land Managenent mnust adjudicate and decide whether to award
the land to the Native Corporation first. He noted that the
remai ning entitlenents are over selected by about 200 percent,
which is contrary to Alaska National Interest Lands Conservation
Act (ANILCA) provisions. The federal governnent has requested
that the state relinquish selections.

CHAI R DYSON asked for clarification.

MR. FOCELS stated that the federal governnent would like to see
Al aska's selections at 125 percent over the selection |level. He
explained that the Governor is in the process of collecting
resource data and is trying to delay giving back sel ecti ons.

He maintained that there is no rush at this tine for the state
to finish the selection process. The state is attenpting to
understand nore about its resource values first.

9:14: 18 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES asked how much of the 5.5 million acres is
left and if it is a part of the over selection.

JT. S/IH STA COW TTEES -4- January 24, 2013



MR. FOGELS explained that the 5.5 mllion acres 1is the
entitlenent the state will eventually receive. He said the state
is 200 percent over sel ected.

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES noted the selection tineline ending in
1994 and wondered why the state is not honoring it.

MR. FOCGELS clarified that 1994 was the state's deadline for
submtting selections, which the state has done. It was not a
date by which the state was to receive |lands. The state can only
whittle down the already-nmade selections. There is no tineline
for the federal governnent when deciding which lands the state
will end up owning.

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES stated that some of the "hoped for" |ands
are on the Ilist.

MR. FOGELS said that was correct.

CHAIR DYSON asked if land designated for parks or wlderness
areas cones out of the federal share or the state's share. He
wondered if it could come out of Alaska's 105 million acres.

MR. FOCELS did not think so. He explained that park |ands are
selected from Bureau of Land Managenent (BLM rmultiple-use
| ands. He said the state would fight back on that issue. He
added that AN LCA prohibits further expansion of Alaska's |ands
for national parks.

9:17: 47 AM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if there was a map of the 5.5 mllion
acres. He inquired about the legislature's role in the Iland
sel ection process.

MR. FOGELS offered to provide a map of all of the state's
selected areas. He explained that DNR has prioritized the
selections so that the federal governnment is aware of their
inportance to the state. The selections are adjusted from tine
to tinme pending new information. At this point, the state has
made the selections and the conmm ssioner of DNR will now work
with BLMto accept or reject the sel ections.

MR. FOGELS continued to say that after the Statehood Act, the
Native Clains Act had not yet been settled yet. In 1968 Prudhoe
Bay was discovered and it was necessary to find a route for TAPS
to Valdez. That forced the Native Cdains issue. The Al aska

JT. S/IH STA COW TTEES - 5- January 24, 2013



Native Clains Settlement Act (ANCSA) was signed into law in
1971.

He noted that while the state was trying to figure out the
Native Clainms issue, the federal governnment froze Al aska's |and
selections and transfers, and rejected nobst of the state's
sel ections. During the ANCSA debate, people were talking about
withdrawing lands for the Native ~corporations and for
conservation system units. That issue was tabled, but the "V2
Lands Debate" provision wthdrew nost of the good |ands from
state selection. He related that when ANILCA was finalized in
1980, Al aska | ost many val uabl e | ands.

9:22:16 AM
CHAI R DYSON asked if the sanme was true with ANSCA. He wondered
if the | ands awarded cane fromthe state.

MR. FOGELS expl ained that since the state's |and sel ections were
frozen by the federal governnent, Native corporations were able
to select sone of those lands and the state's selection pool
shr ank.

MR. FOGELS said that in 1980 President Carter signed AN LCA

which drew 100 mllion acres into conservation system units in
Alaska. He listed the lands that were lost for devel opnent:
Orange Hill Deposit in Wangell St. Elias, copper deposits,

M sty Fjords National Mnunment, Admiralty Island Monunent.

REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON asked if AN LCA was an executive order
or was passed by Congress.

MR. FOGELS said it was passed by Congress.

He said ANILCA was designed to protect Alaskan's rights and
needs for traditional access. Congress set aside nanagenent
provi sions that federal |and managers are supposed to take into
account. He noted that ANILCA has two "no nore" provisions that
forbids the establishnent of nore wildlife refuges. He spoke of
letters the state has witten to BLM addressing violations of
the "no nore" clause. There is an office within DNR that
nmonitors federal |and activity.

9:26:51 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER enphasi zed that those who were around when
ANl LCA was passed were very upset that 60 percent of Al askan
land was off limts. He stressed that protections were |aid down
and nust be strictly paid attention to.

JT. S/H STA COW TTEES - 6- January 24, 2013



MR. FOGELS gave a current exanple - the Delta R ver Special
Managenent Area, where the state protest was denied by the
Secretary of the Interior.

MR. FOCELS touched on the Quter Continental Shelf Lands Act
(OCSLA) created on August 7, 1953. The state nmnages subnerged
lands out for three mles; the federal governnment nmanages
subnmerged | ands fromthere to the territorial limt.

He referred to the state land status map which he said hasn't
changed nmuch. He sumarized status of the remaining |ands and
the need for nore information. In addition to the 105 mllion
acre land entitlenment, Alaska also owns 65 mllion acres of
subnerged | ands, tide line |ands, and shore |line |ands.

9:31:11 AM
REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES requested clarification of the colors on
t he map.

MR. FOGELS related that the blue |lands equal about 100 mllion
acres of entitled lands, the largest land entitlement of any
state. That land was intended for use for econom c independence.
The green land is ANILCA. The pink |ands are Native Corporation
| ands, and brown | ands are BLM federal, nulti-use |ands.

He offered to answer questi ons.
CHAI R DYSON conpl i nented M. Fogels on his presentation.

MR FOGELS concluded that the state nust build strong
relationships with the federal governnent. The Interstate M ning
Compact Comm ssion (IMCC) - Senator Gessel's SB 2 - is an
inportant way to band together with other states regarding mne
i Ssues.

He explained the Super Fund Law - CERCLA 108(b) - EPA's
initiative to assune control of bonding for hardrock mning. He
termed it worrisonme. He said the bonding part determ nes the
cost of reclamation. Woever has control over bonding controls
the noney. He suggested that IMCC is the vehicle to prevent
federal control over bonding. Currently, EPA |ooks at Al aska as
a state that is doing it right, with respect to bondi ng.

9:37:24 AM

CHAIR DYSON pointed out a resolution witten last year that
supported DNR s efforts towards state independence. Comm ssioner

JT. S/IH STA COW TTEES -7 January 24, 2013



Sullivan said that it is valuable that the people of Al aska
support state control. He asked if another resolution would be
supportive.

MR, FOGELS said he would take that idea back to Conm ssioner
Sul I'i van.

He continued to discuss IMCC and its organizational structure.
The Ofice of Surface Mning is the federal body that has
del egated coal mne regulation to the states. In the last few
years they have established an Enhanced Oversight Directive that
scrutinizes states inappropriately. Mning states are disturbed
by this initiative so | MCC has taken it on.

He pointed out that IMCC is also working on Endangered Species
Act issues.

MR. FOGELS stressed that DNR sees federal overreach coupled with
decreasing resources of the US. Arny Corps of Engineers, as a
serious concern to Alaska's economc health. At once tine,
federal agencies recognized that Alaska s wetland situation was
unique in the nation and agreed to handle permtting with nore
flexibility (the Alaska Joint Menorandum. It is not clear if
the federal agencies have been inplenenting this Menorandum in
recent years.

He noted that the Governor has introduced HB 78 and SB 27, bills
that establish authority for the state to evaluate and seek
primacy for wetlands pernmitting. He enphasized that Alaska is
uni que and should have nore flexibility on wetlands permtting.

9:42: 28 AM

REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON asked how much of the cooperative
agreenment with the Corps is affected by recent U S Suprene
Court decisions that make any standi ng water wetl ands.

MR. FOGELS agreed that the Suprene Court decisions put new
si deboards on how wetlands are delineated and nmake reclanation
decisions difficult. He gave an exanple of mning in the 40-Mle
district and fears of —conpensatory mnitigation costs for
wet |l ands. He said DNR believes that if Al aska can assune prinacy
the state will have nuch nore control over wetlands policies.

CHAIR DYSON asked commttee nenbers to consider additional
gquestions to submt to DNR

JT. S/H STA COW TTEES - 8- January 24, 2013



REPRESENTATI VE M LLETT asked M. Fogels if he would discuss the
Nat i onal Ccean Policy, which is not going through the
congressional |egislative process, and what it neans to Al aska's
coastline.

MR, FOGELS replied that DNR has not had a lot to do with that
initiative. He noted the Governor has concern about where the
federal governnent is going with National OGcean Policy. He
offered to provide nore information at a | ater date.

He discussed the President's Interagency W rking Goup on
Coordi nation of Domestic Energy Developnent and Permitting in
Al aska (I AWG), which was established by an executive order to
help permtting and efficient developnment of energy resources
devel opnment. He noted that Alaska did not get a seat on the
wor king group and was told that it is a federal working group.
He reported increasingly better communication with the group and
he hoped that it would help with wetlands permtting issues,
especially on the Quter Continental Shelf (OCS). He believed
that ITAWG would be addressing National OGcean Policy issues,
al so. The group was tasked with witing a report on Integrated
Artic Managenent. He referenced letters from the Governor and
fromhinself to Deputy Secretary Hayes that basically stated the
state's concerns about Arctic managenent. The letters said what
was not needed is additional |ayers of governance or regulatory
activity. What is needed is a nore collaboration relationship
with the federal governnent.

9:49:32 AM

KENT SULLI VAN, Assistant Attorney General, Natural Resources
Section, Departnment of Law, presented information on R S. 2477

He said that R S. 2477 arose out of Section 8 of the Mning Law
of 1866 and was |ater re-designated as Section 2477 of Revised
Statutes of 1878. It was a sinple one sentence enactnent that
says, "The right-of-way for the construction of highways over
public | ands, not reserved for public uses, is hereby granted."

He related that the grant is self-executing - it cones into
being automatically when a public highway is established across
public lands in accordance with the law of the state. Al
rights-of-way existing on the date of repeal of R S. 2477 in
1977 were expressly preserved. He described how rights-of-way
come into being: when the elenments have been satisfied for their
creation and federal courts have said, "We'll |ook to state |aw
to determ ne whether or not those el enments have been satisfied."
Each state has different requirenents to show whether R S. 2477
has been fulfilled.

JT. S/H STA COW TTEES -9- January 24, 2013



He explained that R S. 2477 is a grant by the federal governnent
as an offer for a right-of-way that can be accepted by the
states and by the public. In A aska, the acceptance can be
mani fested by public wuse or through actions by public
aut horities.

VR. SULLIVAN related how highways cane to be defined

Hi storically, highways included foot trails, pack trails, sled
dog trails, crudely built wagon roads, and other corridors of
transportation. Under AS 19.45.001(9), highways include a
hi ghway, road, street, trail, walk, bridge, tunnel, drainage
structure, and ot her simlar or related structures or
facilities.

He discussed how R 'S. 2477 applies to Alaska. It includes
historic routes which exist not only on federal |ands, including
present day BLM Park Service, and Forest Service |and, but also
on fornmer federal |ands which are now held by the state or owned
by private parties, including Native corporations.

CHAI R DYSON asked if Native land is included.
MR. SULLIVAN said it was i ncluded, as well as honesteaded | and.

CHAI R DYSON asked if there is a mechanism for sonmeone purchasing
land to research whether there is an old route on the | and which
m ght be re-activat ed.

MR.  SULLIVAN said not necessarily. It is a legal interest
simlar to prescriptive and inplied easenents. It is incunbent
upon the private property owner to research the background of
the property. He noted that DNR has a database of recognized
R S. 2477 s.

CHAIR DYSON asked if that information is included in a title
conpany search

MR. SULLIVAN said no. Title conpanies search only things that
have been recorded, such as deeds and easenents.

9:57:10 AM

REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON used an exanple of a person in the
Bettles area and asked what happens when primacy is denied in
spite of supporting docunents.

MR. SULLIVAN replied that in Al aska, there are nany ways to
assert the existence of an R S. 2477, which is a state-owned

JT. S/IH STA COW TTEES - 10- January 24, 2013



interest. However, the courts have recognized the ability of
private parties to assert interest with regard to R S. 2477's
t hensel ves.

REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON cl arified an exanple of restricted trai
access. He inquired about the policy to mintain a clear
hi ghway.

MR.  SULLIVAN noted that every dispute is different. In sone
instances the state has intervened and initiated litigation to
renove bl ockage of an R S. 2477, and in sone instances they have
not. There are many bl ockage issues out there.

REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON asked how long it takes DNR to resolve
t hese i ssues.

MR. SULLIVAN said it depends on if there is an existing file or
not. He stated that his background 1is in real property
litigation. He said R S. 2477 cases are extrenely difficult and
conplex due to the need to research ancient clains or docunents,
or to find living witnesses, and federal inmmunity issues.

10: 04: 07 AM

MR.  SULLI VAN spoke of controversy surrounding R S. 2477. From
the federal agency perspective, RS. 2477 was <created in
anticipation of travel needs. He pointed out that federal |and
managers began to enphasize conservation as the highest
priority, which caused problens. From an environnentali st
perspective, there is fear that R S. 2477 is being used as a
| and grab. They are afraid of what may happen if ownership of
the right of ways is given to the state, as opposed to the
federal government.

He shared Uah's current efforts wth pursuing RS 2477's the
last 15 or 20 years. U ah has statute-of-limtation concerns and
was forced to file all clains by June of 2012. They filed 22
separate cases involving over 10,000 rights-of-way. He concl uded
that Al aska can learn much from Utah's efforts, although there
are many differences between the two states.

CHAI R DYSON thanked M. Sullivan for providing such interesting
i nformation.

10: 09: 31 AM
At - Ease

10: 10: 14 AM

JT. S/IH STA COW TTEES -11- January 24, 2013



REPRESENTATI VE KELLER explained the goals of the Citizen's
Advi sory Comm ssion on Federal Areas (CCACFA). He related that
CCACA works with state and federal agencies on land issues. He
provided a brief history of the organization.

10:13: 23 AM
At - ease

10: 16: 50 AM

SCOTT OGAN, Manager, Navigability Project, Departnent of Natural
Resources, Division of Mning, Land & Wter, Departnent of
Nat ural Resources, provided information on the Public Access
Assertion and Defense Unit (PAAD). He shared the PAAD m ssion
statenent, which is to protect the Al aska lifestyle through the
assertion and defense of access to Alaska's public lands and
waters. He listed statewde policy issues such as statehood
entitlenments, navigability, R S. 2477, ANCSA easenents, as well
as day-to-day litigation strategies. He said he was overseen by
a group called the Interagency Navigability and Access Team
made up of representatives from DNR, DF&G and DOL.

He nmentioned the Equal Footing Doctrine, which says that all
states are admitted to the union on equal footing with other
states, including the 1953 Subnerged Land Act, which granted the
title to submerged |ands beneath navigable waters. He |isted
case |law exanples, such as Daniel Ball, Uah, Kandik/Nation,
@ul kana, and PPL Montana. He said the Supreme Court affirmed
Al aska's opinion in all cases.

10: 22: 30 AM
CHAI R DYSON t hanked t he presenters.

CHAI R LYNN al so thanked the presenters.

10: 23: 22 AM

There being no further business to cone before the commttee,
Chair Dyson adjourned the Joint Senate and House State Affairs
Commttees at 10:23 a.m

JT. S/IH STA COW TTEES -12- January 24, 2013



